
 
 
 

Mrs J Wallace 
Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 12 November 2019 

 

MEETING OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Wednesday 20 November 2019 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor N Laws (Chair) 
Councillor G Rossi (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Brenton, M Brown, M Clarke, C Hawkins and T Inch 
 
Parish Councillors: Richard Clark and Harold Martin 
 
Non elected Members: Martin Rawle 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies for Absence  

2.   Minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 7 August. (Pages 3 - 6) 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II (if applicable)  

5.   Urgent Matters of Information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee  

6.   Review of Social Media Guidance for Councillors (Pages 7 - 13) 



 
 

 

7.   Review of Complaints Flowchart (Pages 14 - 15) 

 To discuss proposed amendments to the complaints flowchart, following an action 
from the Committee meeting held on 7 August 2019.  
 

8.   Forward Plan (Page 16) 

9.   Exclusion of Members of the Public  

 The Chair to move : 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in )Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

10.   Part II (Closed Session)  

11.   COMMITTEE ORGANISER:  Democratic Services  

 Tel:    01237 428703 
Email: Dem.services@torridge.gov.uk 
 

12.   Complaints Update  

 To receive a verbal update from the Senior Solicitor. 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Karen Hewlett - Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
Wednesday, 7 August 2019 - 10.00 am 

 
PRESENT Councillor N Laws (Chair) 

Councillor G Rossi (Vice Chair) 
Councillors D Brenton, M Clarke, C Hawkins, T Inch and 
C Leather (In place of M Brown) 

 
 Richard Clark - Parish Representative 
 Harold Martin - Parish Representative 
 Martin Rawle - Independent Person 

 
ALSO PRESENT J Walter - Governance Manager 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 
   

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

8.    APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Margaret Brown; Councillor Chris Leather 
was substituting.  
 
Councillor Inch has also contacted to advise he may be late for the meeting. 
 

9.    MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 12 JUNE 
2019  
 
The minutes dated 13 March 2019 were signed and co-signed as a true record of 
the meeting. 
 
Chair ran through the minutes of 12th June 2019 with Members.  It was proposed 
by Councillor Brenton and seconded by Councillor Clarke and  
 
Resolved:  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 12th June 2019 be approved. 
 
(Vote:  For 5 , Abstentions 1) 

 
10.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
The Chair asked that declarations of interest be made as and when the specific 
agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

11.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II (IF APPLICABLE)  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Clarke, seconded by Councillor Leather and  
 
Resolved: 
That the agenda, as circulated, be agreed. 
 
(Vote: For unanimous) 
 

12.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 
There were no urgent matters bought forward.  
 

13.    REVIEW OF STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE  
 
The Governance Manager highlighted the draft procedures for Committee 
Hearings.  These were sent to Members following the Committee meeting in June, 
where Mr Clark explained the process of sub-committee hearings and it was agreed 
to formalise this into a procedure for Committee Members.  
 
The Governance Manager summarised what the procedures covered and went on 
to highlight why they were needed.  The documents were then passed to Members 
for their comments and feedback.   
 
Members agreed that there needs to be a formalised process and cases need to 
judged carefully; especially given there is no allowance for a Right of Appeal 
process within the Localism Act.  It was felt the Standards Committee need to be 
above reproach and ensure that decision making processes are robust.   
 
There was further discussion regarding the use of mediation and it was queried 
when the use of mediation would be used within the process.  The Governance 
Manager suggested this would take place before a case was escalated to a 
hearing. However, it could also be a solution that Members suggest if they felt it 
was necessary, or if it became clear that mediation hadn’t already taken place.  
 
Discussion took place regarding who makes the decision that a complaint should 
come to this Committee and whether the Code of Conduct has been broken?  It 
was explained that an Investigating Officer would be appointed and asked to 
complete a report, which would go to Monitoring Officer and then to Standards 
Committee.  The Committee ultimately decides if there has been a breach of Code 
of Conduct.  
 
Mr Clark went on to explain the decision making process in relation to investigating 
a complaint, whether there has been a breach, how serious it is and what should 
happen next.   
 
The Chair asked Members to consider if the documents tabled were thorough 
enough and seen to be fair.   
 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Clarke, seconded by Councillor Brenton and –  
 
Resolved:  
That the draft procedure guidance be agreed.  
 
(Vote:  For unanimous) 
 

14.    FORWARD PLAN  
 
Social Media Guidance  
The Chair  suggested some work take place encouraging the good behaviour of 
Councillors towards other Councillors and towards members of the public.  It was 
suggested that information – by word or letter - could be sent to Town, Parish, and 
District Councilors  from the Standards Committee detailing the expectations on 
Councillors and the role of the Committee in overseeing this.  
 
Mr Clark followed this up by stating that he felt it was a matter of public record 
which Parish and Town Councils have had significant changes in Councillors since 
May.  He suggested proactive work to approach these Councils and offer up 
training for new Councillors. It was suggested this could be a future agenda item.  
 
The Chair explained he had received a request from Councillor Dart suggesting 
guidance for Councillors given the increased use of social media.   
 
The Governance Manager also confirmed he is in the process of organising free 
training on social media, which will be provided for free by the Local Government 
Association.  The council are looking to arrange 2 sessions in September.  Once 
Members have received this training, it was agreed to look at drafting social media 
guidance for the November Standards Committee.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Clarke, seconded by Councillor Rossi and  
 
Resolved:  
That social media guidance for Councillors would be added to the Forward Plan in 
November.  
 
(Vote: For unanimous) 
 
Complaints Flowchart 
Mr Clark suggested that the complaints process flowchart be reviewed and revised. 
He agreed to pass a copy to the Monitoring Officer before the next meeting on 20 
November.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Clarke, seconded by Councillor Rossi and –  
 
Resolved: That the complaints flowchart would be added as an agenda for the 
meeting of the Standards Committee in November.  
 
(Vote: For unanimous) 
 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

15.    EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
The Chair to move :  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in )Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

16.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 
The Governance Manager confirmed that the Part II update would be used to 
provide an update on complaints. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Leather and seconded by Councillor Clarke and  -  
 
Resolved: 
To enter into Part II for the remainder of the meeting.  
 
(Vote: For unanimous) 
 

17.    COMPLAINT UPDATE  
 
The Governance Manager provided a verbal update on the complaints received.  
Brief details were provided in relation to each of the complaints and the 
Governance Manager confirmed that the Council also keep a log of incidents to 
review any potential patterns in relation to complaints in general.   
 
Councillor Inch arrived at 10:50 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton,  seconded by Councillor Clarke and –  
 
Resolved: 
To come out of Part II and close the meeting. 
 
(Vote: For unanimous) 
 

18.    COMMITTEE ORGANISER:  DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 10.02 am and closed at 10.52 am 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 6



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Torridge District Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Social Media Guidelines for Members 
 
 
 

 
 

Draft 1 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Social media guidelines for members 
 
The Council encourages Members’ use of new technology, including social media. 
This guidance is intended to help you to use social media in a way that avoids legal 
and reputational risk. 

 
This guidance sets out what is and is not acceptable usage of social media at 
Torridge District Council and complements the general rules under the Code of 
Conduct for Members. 

 
The Monitoring Officer and the Governance team are happy to help Members by 
providing additional advice and guidance as appropriate. Training is also available to 
individual Members or Groups through arranged through the Governance team. 

 
What is social media? 

 
 Social media describes a range of website and online tools which allow 

people to interact. This includes blogs and postings on a wide range of social 
media platforms including (but not limited to) Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, 
Instagram and Snapchat. 

 
 Social media is all about sharing information and people use social media 

platforms to give opinions, create interest groups and build online 
communities and networks which encourage participation and engagement. 

 
Social Media and Members 

 
It is not a requirement for Members to have a Facebook or Twitter account or to use 
other forms of social media to fulfil their role as a Councillor. Social media can help 
you to: 

 
 increase your local profile as an active and engaged Councillor 

 perform better as a community leader by reaching out to local residents 

 keep in touch with or obtain local views and opinions 

 be more approachable 

 campaign on local issues 
 
A useful rule of thumb when using social media is that if you would not give out a 
piece of information or make a comment to a room full of people, then don’t say it on 
social media. 

 
 Remember that, whenever you act or appear to act in your official capacity on 

social media, you must comply with the Torridge District Council Members’ 
Code of Conduct. The overarching rules are that you should not bring 
Torridge District Council into disrepute, and must respect confidentiality. 

Page 8



 

 

If you have any questions or concerns you should speak to the Governance 
team in the first instance. 

 
Things to bear in mind 

 
 Any communication is capable of being misinterpreted and this includes social 

media. There is something about the immediacy of social media and the lack 
of face to face contact which seems to magnify the problem; 

 Things happen quickly on social media and sometimes people express 
emotional reactions in a knee jerk way. Comments can be misinterpreted or 
misrepresented particularly with regard to something that might be perceived 
as being more controversial than it was expected to be; 

 Remember that information and comments that you and others make can be 
broadcast to a large number of people more quickly than other media, which 
is a double edged sword; 

 Even if you withdraw a comment, someone may have taken a screenshot; 
 The same rules apply to social media that govern the rest of your behaviour 

as a Councillor – but you need to take extra care given their immediacy and 
ease of dissemination on social media; 

 Although the best use of social media is conversational in tone, publishing to 
the web is still publishing. What you’ve said on the web is recorded and it is 
permanent so make sure that your online content and comment is accurate, 
informative and thought through. Think of it as speaking in public. Think 
before you commit each word; 

 This doesn’t mean that Members cannot, in the appropriate context, 
communicate politically but you should be careful not to say anything that you 
wouldn’t be prepared to stand by under scrutiny or that you would not feel 
comfortable repeating or justifying, for example, at a public meeting; 

 Be clear if you are expressing personal views. Consider adding this in your 
profile description. 

 
Some legal issues: 

 
 Libel – If you publish an untrue statement about a person which is 

damaging to their reputation, they may consider it as defamatory and 
consider legal action. The same thing may happen if, for example, someone 
else publishes something defamatory on your website; you know about it 
and don’t take swift action to remove it. A successful legal claim could result 
in the award of damages against you. 

 
 Copyright – Placing images or text on your site from a copyrighted 

source (for example extracts from publications or photos), without 
obtaining permission, is likely to breach copyright laws. Therefore, don’t 
publish anything you are unsure about, or obtain prior permission. Again, 
a successful claim for breach of copyright would be likely to lead to an 
award of damages against you. 

 

 Data Protection and GDPR – Do not publish the personal data of 
individuals unless you have their express permission. Personal information 
in an email or personal exchange should not be presumed to imply any 
consent to pass it on to others. If you place personal information on a public 
forum you should expect it to be published by others. 

Page 9



 

 

 
 Bias and Predetermination – if you are involved in making planning, 

licensing or other quasi-judicial decisions, do not say anything through social 
media (or indeed anywhere) that suggests you have made your mind up on 
an issue that is due to be formally decided. While your likely view on a 
particular application may be well known, you need to be able to show that 
you attended the committee or hearing prepared to take on board and weigh 
all the evidence, and were genuinely persuadable to a different view, 
otherwise the decision may be later challenged as invalid. If a person has 
suffered some sort of detriment as a result of such an invalid decision, they 
may have a claim against the Council for damages. 

 

Page 10



 

 

Social Media and the Code of Conduct for Members generally: 

 
 Aspects of the Code of Conduct for Members will apply to your online activity in 

the same way as they do to any other communication you use. The key to 
whether your online activity is subject to the Code is whether you are, or appear 
to be, acting in your capacity as a Councillor rather than as a private individual. 
(For example, if you want to make it clear that you are not expressing views in 
your capacity as a Member; you may choose to add phrases such as: “speaking 
entirely personally…” “the views expressed here are my personal views”). 

 
 Although you may be clear in your mind that you are acting in a private 

capacity it may be less clear to others, so to avoid doubt, it is better to spell out 
clearly whether you are stating personal, party or TDC corporate positions or 
views. 

 
 One way of avoiding any confusion, and avoiding some of the potential 

problems related to the Code of Conduct, may be to consider keeping your 
online accounts as a Councillor separate from those where you communicate in 
a personal capacity. You should include this information in your profile. 

 
 This is an individual decision for each member and some Members may find the 

convenience of having one account outweighs the advantages of separate 
accounts. The council’s Governance team can help you with more specific advice 
if needed. 

 
Relevant Elements of the Members’ Code of Conduct: 

 
 Treat others with respect - do not use social media to make personal 

attacks or indulge in rude, disrespectful or offensive comments. 

 
 Comply with equality laws – do not publish anything that might be seen as 

racist, sexist, ageist, homophobic or anti-faith. 

 
 Never bully or harass anyone – do not say anything, particularly if it is part of 

a series of similar comments about a person or on a theme that might be 
construed as bullying or intimidation. 

 
 Do not bring the council into disrepute – you should not publish anything 

that could reasonably be perceived as reflecting badly upon or lowering the 
reputation of you or the Council. 

 
 Do not disclose confidential information - you must not, in your use of social 

media, just as in any other circumstances, disclose information given to you in 
confidence by anyone, or information acquired by you which you believe, or 
ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential nature. Apply exactly the same 
standards to your social media communications as you would to statements 
made in a more formal context. 

Page 11



 

 

Staying out of Trouble - Some Do’s and Don’ts 
 
Do: 

 
 set and check you have the appropriate privacy settings for your blog or 

networking site –especially if you have a private, non-political blog. Do you 
want anyone to see it, or selected people? Remember that sites like 
Facebook often change the parameters of settings. 

 
 keep an eye out for defamatory or obscene posts from others on your blog or 

page and remove them as soon as possible to avoid the perception that you 
condone such views.  Be aware that the higher your profile as an elected 
member, the more likely it is you will be seen as acting in your official capacity 
when you blog or network. 

 
 consider keeping your personal and elected member profile on social 

networking sites separate. 
 
 maintain appropriate professional boundaries. 

 
 ensure you use council facilities appropriately; if you use a council provided 

blog site or social networking area, any posts you make will be viewed as 
being made in your official capacity. 

 
 be aware that you will be seen as acting in your official capacity if you publish 

information that you could only have accessed by being an elected member. 

 
 feel able to make political points, but be careful about being too specific or 

personal if referring to individuals. General comments about another party or 
comments on policy or position are less likely to be viewed as a personal attack. 

Page 12



 

 

Don’t: 

 
 post social media content in haste, particularly in circumstances where your 

judgement might be impaired; for example if you are angered by a comment, 
tired or have consumed alcohol. 

 
 never post comments that you would not be prepared to make on paper or 

face to face. 
 
 use council facilities for personal or political blogs. 

 
 use social media in any way to attack, insult, abuse, defame or otherwise make 

negative, offensive or discriminatory comments about council staff, service 
users, their family or friends, colleagues, other professionals, other 
organisations, or the Council. 

 
 publish confidential information that you may have learned or had access to as 

part of your role as an elected member. This includes personal information about 
service users, their families or friends, contractors, council staff as well as 
council related information. 

 
 represent your personal views, or those of any political party or interest group 

you belong to, as being those of the council, on any social medium. 

 
 browse, download, upload or distribute any material that could be considered 

inappropriate, offensive, defamatory, illegal or discriminatory. 
 
 make conspicuous or excessive use of social media technology during the 

course of a Council or committee meeting so that you give the impression to 
the public of not being respectful of the proceedings and, more seriously, taking 
decisions that are not based on full engagement with the facts and arguments. 

Page 13



Appendix 4
Torridge District Council – Councillor Complaints 

Procedure Flowchart

Complaint with supporting
evidence received in writing 

by Monitoring Officer

Subject member contacted 
for response

Independent Person (IP) to 
consider complaint and 
response and advise 

Monitoring Officer

Decision by Monitoring 
Officer within 21 working 
days of fully evidenced 

complaint

Monitoring Officer 
acknowledges complaint within 

5 working days and seeks 
additional information / 

supporting evidence if required 

Preliminary tests:
Acting in capacity as member?
Was member in office at time 
of alleged conduct?
Very minor or trivial matter?
Vexatious or malicious?
Historical?
Potential breach of Code?
Assessment of public interest? 

Investigation report to 
include:
Agreed facts;
Facts not agreed and 
corresponding conflicting 
evidence;
Conclusion whether or 
not a breach of the Code

Complaint 
rejected 

with 
reasons 

given

Monitoring Officer 
explores informal 

resolution (e.g. mediation, 
apology, etc)

Potentially criminal 
conduct / breach of other 
regulations – referral to 

Police

Investigating Officer 
Appointed

Panel to arbitrate on 
facts and conclude 

whether a breach of the 
Code of Conduct 

occurred.
Decision made in 

consultation with IP

Referral to Standards 
Committee

No further action
Formal Decision / action

Informal resolution

Consultation with IP

or

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Preliminaryinvestigation

Refer to police if potentiallycriminal conduct

Page 15



STANDARDS COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2019 – 2020 
 

2019 / 20 12 June 2019 7 August 2019 
 

20 November 2019 
 

20 February 2020 
 

 10am 10am 10am 10am 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction to the role 
of Standards Committee 

 

Review of Standards  
Sub-Committee 

Procedure 

Review of Social Media 
Guidance 

 
Review of Complaints 

Flowchart 

 
 

 
Standing item Complaint update 

 
 

Complaint update 
 
 

Complaint update 
 
 

Complaint update 
 
 

Standing 
Item 

 
 
 

   

 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 8


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 7 August.
	6 Review of Social Media Guidance for Councillors
	7 Review of Complaints Flowchart
	complaints process v5
	Page 1


	8 Forward Plan

